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Chartered Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Industrial Energy Limited

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Industrial Energy Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the
statement of Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of cash flows and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013. as amended
(“the Act™) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31. 2022, its
profit including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the *Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the F inancial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the "Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we

Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Annual report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility of Management for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act

with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows- changes in
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equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the C ompany and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent: and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

¢ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease (o continue as a going concern. o
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*  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence. and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

I. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 17 a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit:

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended:

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

(g) In our opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2022 has been paid
/ provided by the Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read
with Schedule V to the Act:

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.  The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 29.2 to the financial statements; e
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iii.

v,

The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any material foreseeable losses:

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

a) The management has represented that. to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity,
including foreign entities (“Intermediaries™), with the understanding, whether recorded in
writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries:

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds
have been received by the com pany from any person(s) or entity. including foreign entities
(“Funding Parties™), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise,
that the company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.

V. The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with section
123 of the Act.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP

Chartered

countants

ICAI Firm % istration Number: 301003E/E300005

) (e,

per Kamal Aga ;{l/

Partner
Membership
UDIN: 2205

umber: 058652
8652AHBMSN9860

Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: April 14, 2022
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: Industrial Energy Limited (“the Company™)

In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and given by the company and the
books of account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and belief, we state that:

(i)X@)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative

(i)(a)(B)

(i)(b)

(i)(c)

(i)(d)

details and situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

The Company has not capitalized any intangible asscts in the books of the Company and
accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(a)(B) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company has verified Property, Plant and Equipment in accordance with its regular
programme of verification of these assets whereby all the assets are physically verified over
a period of three years, which in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets. No material discrepancies were identified on such
verification.

The title deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed in note
6.3 to the financial statements included in property, plant and equipment are held in the name
of the Company, except the following:

Description | Amou | Held in | Whether | Period Reason for not being
of Property | nt in | the promoter | held — | held in the name of
INR name of | , director | indicate | Company

crores or their | range,
relative where
or appropri
employee | ate
One 19.07 | Tata Promoter | Since The land on which the
Building  at Steel October aforesaid  Building is
Kalinganagar Limited 2019 situated is in the name of

Government of Odisha,
which has been leased to
Tata steel. The land can
be used by sister concerns
of Tata  steel/Group
company whose finished
product can be used by
Tata steel as input.

However, the land cannot
be registered in the name
of any other Group

Company.

The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right of use
assets) or intangible assets during the year ended March 31. 2022.
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(i)e)

(ii)(a)

(i1)(b)

(iii)(a)

(iii)(b)

(iii)(f)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

(vii)(b)

As represented to us by the management, there are no proceedings initiated or are pending
against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals
during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification. In
our opinion the coverage and the procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the
basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any
other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a), (¢), (d) and (e) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided guarantees, provided security and granted
loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships
or any other parties. The investments made are not prejudicial to the Company's interest.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable
on demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are applicable and accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies
Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has not specified the maintenance of cost records under Section
148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, for the products/services of the Company.

The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues
including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and other
statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us
and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

The dues of goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax,
sales-tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess, and other
statutory dues have not been deposited on account of any dispute, are as follows:
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(viii)

(ix)(a)

(ix)(b)

(ix)(c)

(ix)(d)

Name of the | Nature of | Amount Period to | Forum where the

statute the dues | (Rs. in | which the | dispute is pending
crores) amount relates

Finance Act, | Service 0.60 April 2011- | CESTAT, Kolkata

1994- Service Tax | Tax September 2015

As represented to us by the management, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any
transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the
Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

As represented to us by the management, the Company has not been declared wilful
defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any government authority.

Term loans obtained during the year were applied for the purpose for which the loans were
obtained.

The Company did not raise any short term funds during the year hence, the requirement to
report on clause (ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix)(e) and (f)  The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly,

(x)(a)

(x)(b)

(xi)(a)

(xi)(b)

(xi)(c)

(xit)

(xiii)

the requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) and (f) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer /
further public offer (including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause
3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully
or partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

As represented to us by the management, no fraud/ material fraud by the Company or no
fraud / material fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by cost auditor/ secretarial auditor or by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed
under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received
by the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clauses 3(xii)(a), (b) and (c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to
the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting standards.
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(xiv)(a)

(xiv)(b)

(xv)

(xvi)(a)

(xvi)(b)

(xvi)(c)

(xvi)(d)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)(a)

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the
period under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
without obtaining a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India
as per the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by
Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order
is not applicable to the Company.

As represented to us by the management, the Group has 6 Core Investment Companies as a
part of the Group.

The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly
requirement to report on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 33 to the financial statements, ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of
Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting
the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within
a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however. state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is
based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor
any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the balance
sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

In respect of other than ongoing projects, there are no unspent amounts that are required to
be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act. This matter has
been disclosed in note 35 to the financial statements.
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(xx)(b)  The Company has not transferred the amount remaining unspent in respect of ongoing
projects, to a Special Account, till the date of the report. However, the period for such
transfer i.e., thirty days from the end of the financial year as permitted under sub section (6)
of section 135 of the Companies Act, has not elapsed till the date of our report.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registrgfigsn Number: 301003E/E300005

'\
Vo QWU Fd
borner U

Membership Number: 058652
UDIN: 22058652AHBMSN9860
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: April 14, 2022
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF INDUSTRIAL ENERGY LIMTED

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Industrial
Energy Limited (“the Company™) as of March 31, 2022 in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information. as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to these financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to these Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
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and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail. accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use. or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls With Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAL.

For S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firnd Rggistration Number: 301003E/E300005

!\\ lﬁ"’/

per Kamgl Aga at/
Partner

Membership Number: 058652
UDIN: 22058652 AHBMSN9860
Place of Signature: Kolkata
Date: April 14, 2022
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ﬂndustrial Energy Limited
Balance Sheel as al March 3 1, 2022
All arnounts are in Rs. Crores unless otherwise slated
g $ at As at
Particulars Notes 31-Mar.22 31-Mar-24
ASSETS o
Non-current Assets
(@) Property, plant and equipment 4 6.54 6.52
(b)  Capital Work-in-Progress 5 383.48 49.82
(¢} Financial Assets
(i) Finance Lease Receivables 6 1,249,37 1,281.58
(i} Other Financia Assets 7 21.98 21.27
(d)  Non-current Tax Assets (Net) 10.54 11.21
{e)  Other Non-current Assets 8-} 9339 66.84
Total Non-current Assets 174530 1,637.24
Current Assets
(@) Inventories 9 32.28 26.68
(9)  Financial Assets
! (i) investments 10 98.58 96.37
(i)  Trade Receivables 11 26.34 28.08
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 12 4.45 8.50
(v}  Finance Lease Receivables 8 50.31 88.24
(V)  Other Financial Assets 7 14,92 16.79
(¢} Other Current Assats 8 18.81 6.43
Total Current Assets * 24570 . 268,09
E)TAL ASSETS 1,991.00 1,905.33
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
{a)  Equity Share Capital 13 666,00 666.00
{b)  Other Equity 14 1 301.67 280.80
Total Equity _ ae7e7 946,80
LIABILITIES
Nen-current Liabilities
(@)  Financial Liabilities
| {i) Borrowings 15 465.13 503.88
{ (b) Long Term Provisions 16 8,70 8.80
(c)  Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 17 217 581 211.98
Total Non-current Llabilities 69241 724.66
Current Liabilities - Eiies ey
(8)  Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrewings 18 66.93 67.33
(i} Trade Payables
(@) Total outstanding dues of micro and Small enterprises 19 1.66 0,37
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
i enterprises and gmall enterprises 19 2.7 23.94
(it} Other Financial Liabilities 20 223.51? 133.82
(b)  Provisions 16 0.38, 0.73
{c)  Current Tax Liabilities {Nel} - 0.72
(d)  Other Current Liabilities 21 10,73 6.96
Total Current Liabilities | 330.92 233.§L
_____Total Liabilities . i L A A 1,_02333_ 958.53
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 1,991.00 1,905.33
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per cur report of even date Fer and on behalf of the Board of Directors

| ;i.f‘u&& Angdhond s
For SRBATLIBOI & CO LLP Vijay V. Namjbshi

' Director |
Mumbai

O ¢
Jagmit Singh Sianu
Chief Executive Officer

o s

Kafika Dabholkar
Company Secretary
Mumbai, April 14, 2022

Kolkata, April 14, 2022
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Avneesh Gupta
Director
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Anshuk De iy
Chief Financial Officer
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Industrial Energy Limited

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are in Rs. Crores unless otherwise stated

iParticulars ‘ Notes [ Year ended
! 31-Mar-22
| Revenue from Contracts with Customers | 22 300.30

] Other Income
' Total iIncome (1+1)
IV Expenses
(a) Cost of Fuel Consumed
(b) Employee Benefits Expense
(¢) Finance Costs
(d) Other Expenses
Total Expenses (V)

\ Profit Before Tax (l1-iv)
VI Tax Expense:

(i) Current Tax

(iii) Deferred Tax
Total income tax expense

VIl Profit for the year ( V-v|)
Vil Other comprehensive income not to be reclassified to profit or
toss in subsequent years:
(@) Remeasurements loss/(gain) on defined benefit plans
(b) Income -tax effect on above

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax
IX  Total comprehensive income for the year (Vti-vim)
Eamings Per Equily Share- basic and diluted (in Rs.)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For SR.BATLIBO!I &COLLP
ICAI Ei Registration no - 301003E/E300005 ’
Chaftere Accountants

Kolkata, April 14, 2022

Year ended
31-Mar-21
297.90
23 3.47 5.31
303.77 303.21
i 9.47 8.33
2% | 19.01 18.36
25 42.04 §1.62
%6 | 7973 75.10
150.25 153.41
[ 153.52 149.80

]
27 26.82 28.76
{27 5.60 9.40
| 324p 38.16
121.10 111.64
0.40 (0.78)
(0.07) 0.14
0.33 {0.64)
120.77 112.28
1.82 1.68

For and on behalf of the Board of Direct I's

\ 7

Vijay V. Narhioshi Avneesh Gupta
Director - Director

Mumbai Jamshedpur

Jagmit Singh Sidhu Anshuk De ST
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
Jamshedpur Jamshedpur
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Kalika Dabholkar
Company Secretary
Mumbai, April 14, 2022




Industrial Energy Limited

Statement of Changes in Equity for the Year ended March 31 2022

All amounts are in Rs. Crores unless otherwise stated

(a) Equity Share Capital

Particulars A4 B At
31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
Balance as at the beginning of the year 666.00 666.00
Equity share capital issued during the year - -
Balance as at the end of the year 666.00 666.00
{(b) Other Equity
Reserves and Surplus Total
Particulars General | Retained Eaul
5 ity
reserve | Earnings
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 68.88 99.64 168.52
Profit for the year - 111.64 111.64
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - 0.64 0.64
Total comprehensive income 68.88 211.92 280.80
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 68.88 211.92 280.80
Balance as at 1st April, 2021 68.88 211.92 280.80
Profit for the year - 121,10 1z aile)
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - (0:38) (0.33)
Total comprehensive income 68.88 332.69 401.57
Payment of Dividend on Equity Shares - (99.90) (99.90)
Balance as at 31st March, 2022 68.88 232.79 301.67

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For S.R.BATLIBOI & CO LLP i
ICAI Fj egistration no : 301003E/E300005
ceguntants

Membership no : 058652

Kolkata, April 14, 2022

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

;S AR ANy iyond

Vijay V' N amjoshi

Director
Mumbai
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Jagmit Singh Sidhu
Chief Executive Officer

Jamshedpur
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Kalika Dabholkar
Company Secretary
Mumbai, April 14, 2022
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Director
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Industrial Energy Limited

Slatement of Cash Flows for the Year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are in Rs. Crores unless otherwise stated

————

I Year ended Year ended
Particulars
. B PR ] 31:-Mar-22 |  31-Mar-21
Profit before tax 153.62 149.80
Adjustments for:
Gain on Investments classified as fair value through profit or logs (2.73) (3.24)
Irrecoverable balances written off 8.16 -
Interest Income from Bank depasits (0.64) (0.31)
Interest income an Inter corporate deposits - {0.09)
Finance costs 42.04 51.62
Cash flow from operating activities 201.35 197.78
Movements in working capital
(Increase)/Decrease in trade and other receivables (7.43) 0.10
Decrease in finance lease receivables 87.43 118.73
(Increase) in inventories (5.62) (1.81)
(Increase) in other financial assets and other assets {5.88) (2.51)
Increase in trade payables 5,04 3.41
{Decrease)/ncrease in ather liabilities 3.91 {(0.93)
Cash generated from operations 278.80 31577
Income taxes paid ; (26.80) (28.51)
Cash flow from operating activities 252,00 287,26
Purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment (reclassified ag Finance lease receivables), incl (72.43) (77.61)
capital advances and capitaf creditors
(Increase) in Bank Deposits (0.71) (12.59)
Interest Income on Bank Deposils 0.64 0.31
Proceeds from sale of investments 682.20 688.30
Purchase of current investments inciuding advances (591.68) (716.34)
Inter corporate deposits given - {(120.00)
Inter corporate deposits repayment - 120.00
Interest Income on Inter corporate deposits - 0.09
Cash flow used in investing activities (71.98) {117.84)
Proceeds from Inter corporale deposits - 2.80
Repayment of Inter carporate deposits - (30.20)
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 28.00
Repayment of fong-term borrowings (67.15) (87.70)
Dividends paid on equity shares (99.90) -
Interest paid {43.02) (51.45)
Cash flow used In financing activities (182.07) (166.75)
Net increase ! {decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (2.05) 2.67
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8.50 3.83
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 4.45 8.50
See accompanying notes to the financial statements
Cash and cash equivalents include (Refer note 12): g7 i le)x
‘\’——\—ﬁ
Particulars sk 2l
i St Sk 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
A, Balance with Banks 455 RN 6.50
3 4.45 6.50
As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
!’}\ A PAN gl S
Vijay V. Namjcshi Avneesh Gupta
Director Director ¢
Mumbai Jamshedpur
| Skl
Jagmit Singh Sidhu £ Ans}\/u\R e T
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officsr™"
Jamshedpur Jamshedpur
oy A0

Kotkata, Aprit 14, 2022

Kalika Dabholkar
Company Secretary
Mumbai, April 14, 2022




Industrial Energy Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are in Rs. Crores unless otherwise stated

Note 1 Corporate Information:

Industrial Energy Limited ("IEL" or "the Company") was incarporated on 7th February, 2007 and has its registered office at
Corporate Centre, 34, Sant Tukaram Road, Carnac Bunder, Mumbai {Maharashtra). IEL is a joint venture between The
Tata Power Company Limited holding 74% of the equity share capital and Tata Steel Limited holding 26% equity share
capital of the Company. IEL has been incorporated with the view to selting up power plants and are classified as captive
power plants of Tata Steel Limited. These power plants supply power to Tata Steel Limited.

Note 2 Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS), as notified under
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (as
amended from time to time), presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule il to the Companies Act, 2013, (Ind AS
compliant Schedule [1l) and the provisions of The Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent applicable.

2.1 Basis of preparation and presentation:

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for: - certain financial assets and liabiiities
that are measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period (refer accounting policy for financial instruments),

Accounting Policy are consistent with earlier years unless stated otherwise.

2.2 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

In the application of the Company's accounting policies, the management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on histarical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. Detailed information about each of these
estimates and judgements is included in relevant notes together with information about the basis of calculation for each
affected fine item in the financial statements.

The areas involving critical estimates or judgements are:
i. Estimation of current tax and deferred tax - Note 27 and Note 17
ii. Estimation of defined benefit obligations- Note, 16 and Note 30

L]




Industrial Energy Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are in Rs, Crores unless otherwise stated

Note 3 Other Significant Accounting Policies

3.1 Foreign Currencies
The functional currency of the Company is Indian Rupee.

Income and expenses in foreign currencies are recorded at exchange rates prevailing on the date of the transaction.
Foreign cutrency denaminated monetary assets and fiabilities are transiated at the exchange rate prevailing on the balance
sheset date and exchange gains and losses arising on settlement and restatement are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currencies are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for
exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which
are included in the cost of those assets when they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings.

3.2 Current versus non-current classification:
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification. An asset is
treated as current when it is:

. Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

. Held primarily for the purpose of trading

. Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash equivalent untess restricted from being exchanged or used to seltle a liability for at (east twelve months
after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

. Itis expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

. It is held primatily for the purpose of trading

. Itis due lo be setifed within twelve months after the reporting period, or

. There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period

The Company classifies all other liabilities as, non-current.

Deferred tax assets and liabiiities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash
equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.




Industrial Energy Limited )
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are in Rs. Crores unless otherwise stated

Note 3 Other Significant Accounting Policies - continued

3.3 Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one enlity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities(other than financial assels and financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss )are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs direclly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabifities measured at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

3.4 Financial Assets

All regular purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame established
by regulation or convention in the market place. Financial assets are classified, at initial recognilion, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. The
classificaticn of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and
the Company's business maodel for managing them

3.4.1 Financial assets at amortised cost
A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amortised cost if bath the following conditions are met:

a) The assel is held within a business madel whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
{SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate
(EIR) method. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or loss.

3.4.2 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

~ A'financial asset' is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met;
a) The objective of the business madel is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assels,
and
b} The asset's contractual cash flows represent SPPI
On initial recognition, the Company makes, an irevacable election on an instrument-by-instrument basis lo present the ‘
subsequent changes in fair value in other comprehensive income pertaining to investments in equity instruments, other than
equity instruments which are held for trading. Subsequently, they are measured at fair value with gains and losses arising
from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in the 'Reserve for equity
instruments through other comprehensive income'. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to statement of profit and
foss on sale of the investments.




Industrial Energy Limited .
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022
All amounts are in Rs, Crores unless otherwise stated

Note 3 Other Significant Accounting Policies - continued

gnilion. The (ransaction costs direc

value through profit or loss are immediately recagnised in the statement of

3.4.4 Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset ar part of a group of similar financial assets

removed from the Company's balance sheel) when;

« The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

* The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the a
wilhout material defay to a third party under
and rewards of the assel, or (b)
transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows fro
and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership, Wh
rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Compan
ent. In that case, the Com
measured an a basis that reflects the rights an

Sse

pany also recagnises an a

Impairment of Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of balance sheet whether a financi

expected credit losses (o be measured threugh a loss allowance, The Company re

all trade receivables that do not conslitute a financi
equal to the 12 month expected credit losses or af
increased significantly since initial recognition,

an amount equat to the

3.5 Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are recognised initiall
cast. For purposes of subsequent measure
a) Financial liabililies ai fair vajue through profit or loss.

b) Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrawings)

3.5.1 Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial fiabilities at fair value throu
recognition as at fair value through profit or loss, Ga
not designated any financial liability as at fair .value through profit or loss
3.5.2 Financial liabilities at amortise
After initial recognition, interest-
losses are recognised in profit o
included as fi

d cost (Loans and borrowings)
bearing loans and borrowings are subse
rloss when the liabilities are derecognised
nance costs in the statement of profit and loss

3.5.3 Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is dereco
replaced by another from
exchange or modification is treated as the derecagnition of the ariginal §
f profit and loss,

3.6 Offsetting of financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net a
offset the recognised amounts and thers is an intention to setil

3.7 Dividend distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
The Company recognises a liability to m
longer at the discretion of the Company.
corresponding amount is reco
Directors,

a 'pass through' arrangement; and either (a)
the Company has neither transferred nor retained subst

M an assel or has entered into a pass
y conlinues to recognise the transferre

d obligations that the Company has retained.

ng transaction. For all other financial assels, e

y at fair value and in case of loans and bo
ment, financial fiabilities are classified in two categories:

gh profit or loss include financial liabilities held for tra
ins or losses on liabilities held fo

is discharged or cancelled ar axpires, When an existing
e same fender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantiatly
iability and the recognition of a new liability. The differenc

mount is reported in the balance sheat if there
€ on a net basis, to realise the asset:

ake dividend distributions to its equily holders when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no
As per the corporale laws in India,
gnised directly in equity. In case of interim

measured at amortised cost or at fair value through cther
able lo the acquisition of financial assets and liabilities at fair|
loss.

tly atteibut
profit and

) is primarily derecognised (ie.

ssel or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in fuli
the Company has transferred substantially all the risks

anliafly all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has

-through arrangement, it evaluates if
en it has neither transferred nor ret
d asset to the extent of the Company's

ssociated liability. The transferred asset and the assoclated liability are

al assel or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109 requires
cognises lifelime expecled losses for all contract assets and / or
xpecled credit losses are measured at an amount

life time expecled credit losses if the credit risk on the financial asset has

rrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction

ding and financial liabilities designated upon initial
r trading are recognised in the profit or loss. The Company has

°

quently measured al amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and
as well as through the EIR amortisation process, The EIR amortisation is

financial liability is
madified, such an
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is a currently enforceable legal right to
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a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. A
Dividend, the Jiability is recognised on its declaration by the Board of|
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Industrial Energy Limited :
Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022
Alf amaounts are in Rs. Grores unless otherwise stated

6. Finance Lease Receivables {unsecured unless otherwise stated)

Accounting Policy

Leasing arrangement

The delerminaticn of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the
inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent an the use of a
specific asset or assels and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly
specified in an arrangement,

The Company as lessor

Leases are classified as operating lease when the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of an asset to the leases, However the company doesn’t give any asset on operating lease,

Leases are classified as finance leases when substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership transfer from the Company
to the lessee. Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables al the Company's net investment in
the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the net
investment outstanding in respect of the lease.

Particulars & o A ot
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

Non-current

Non- Current Finance Lease Receivabies N 1,248.37 1,281.58_
. Total SO T AT ~ 1,249.37 1,284.58

Current

Current Finance Lease Receivables 50.31 88.24

Total : 50.31§ 88.24

6.1 Leasing Arrangements

6.2 Amount receivable under Finance Lease

Minimum Lease Receivables Present value ?f AL
i lease receivables
As at As at As at As at

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Not later than ene year 224 .95 270.29 50.31 88.24
Later than one year and not {ater than five years 857,18 858.87 228.89 209.63
Later than five years 2,189.79 2\875.73 1,020.48 1,071.95
Total 2 3,271.89 3,504.89 ©1,299.68 1,369.82

Unearned finance income 1,972.21 2,135.07 - -
Present value of mimimum lease receivables 1,299.68 1,369.82 1,299.68 1,369.82
Total 3,271.89 3,504.89 1,299.68 1,369.82

Guaranteed residual values of assels leased under finance leases at the end of the reporting period are estimated at Rs.
102.52 cr, (as at 31st March 2021 : Rs, 102.45 cr.)

Unguaranteed residuat values of assets leased under finance leases are not estimatabie.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the inception of contract for the entire lease term.

The average effective interest rate contracted for these leases is approximately 13% - 17% per annum as at March 31, 2022
(as at 31st March 2021: 13% - 17% per annum)

°

6.3 Title deeds of immovable properties classified under finance lease, not held in name of the company

Whether Period held —
y Amount in i promoter, indicate range, Ree;son for not being held
Description of Property INR crores Held in the name of director or their{where in the name of Company
relative appropriate
PR The dand on  which the
aforesaid Building is situated
is in the name of Government
of Odisha, which has been
One‘Bunding at 19.07 Tata Steel Limited Bromcisr Since October  |leased to Tata steel, The ?and
Kalinganagar 2019 can be wused by sister
goncerns of Tata steel/Group
company whose finished
product can be used by Tata
% steel as input. o

A L




Industrial Energy Limited
All amounts are in Rs, Craores unless otherwise stated

7 Other Financial Assets
(Unsecured,Consid‘e_rggggp_d)

Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022

9 Inventories

Accounting Policy

3 As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
Non-current
Bank Deposits { earmarked against borrowings) _21.98 21.27
Total 21,98 21.27
Current ]
Lease income Accrued on Finance Lease Receivables 14.80 15.68
Qther Receivables 0.12 0.11
Total 14.92 15.79
8 Other Assets
_{Unsecured,Considered good)

, As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
Non-current ! g

Capital Advances 61.65 29.49
Balance with Gout, Authorities 31.50 37.11
Prepaid Expenses 0.24 0.24
Total o 93.39 66.84
Current i
Batlance with Gowt. Authorities 17.48 572
Advance to Suppliers 1.03 0.23
Prepaid Expenses 0.30 0.34
Other Advances - 0.14
Total 18.81 6.43

As at

As at
Particulars r:1.|v|;,u-..22 31-Mar-21
Inventories (lower of cost and net realisable value)
Fuel 5.84 3.30
Stores and Spare parts 26.45 23.38
Total 32.29 26.(18_«
10 Current Investments
Particulars N ale i e
o 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
No of units | Amount | No of units Amount
Unquoted Investments in mutual funds :
(at Fair Value through Profit and Loss) °
(a) HDFC Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth Opticn 7,579,156 2.39 11,576.428 3.54
(b) ABSL Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth = = 15,456.030 1.72
(c) Kotak Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth - - 15.664 0.00*
(d) Axis Liquid Fund Direct Plan 82,972.817 19.62 78,888.471 18.03
(&) ICICI Prudential Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth - - 591,643,327 18.03
(f) IDFC Cash Fund Growth Option Direct Plan 76,868.703 19.76 - -
{(g) IDFC Overnight Fund Direct Plan Growth - - 7,255,046 0.79
(h) Kotak Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth 45,805.403 19.75 43,345.396 18.03
(i) Nippon Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth - - 35,850.008 18.04
() SBI Liquid Fund Direct Growth 59,216.376 19.74 56,464,548 18.19
(k) UTI Liquid Cash Plan - Direct Plan Growth 49,637.064 17.32 - -
[Total s A 98.58 1 96.37
* Amount is lesser than the rounding off norms followed by the ComHany e
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11 Trade Receivables

As at As at

pariiaii . - 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Current .

_____Trade Receivables (unsecured, considerad good) 26.34 28.08

| Total 26.34 28.08
Notes

(1) The average credit period for the company’s receivable is 30 days.

(2) Company has only single customer i.e. Tata Steel Limited (TSL), Joint
plants situated at Jamshedpur and Kalinganagar and accordingly credit

ven
risk

Q)
12

The afaresaid receivables are undisputed and are not due for payment as o

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Accounting Policy

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks,
maturity of three moniths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk o
with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

For the purpose of the statement of ca
deposits, as defined above as they are

sh flows, cash and cash equivalents consist
considerad an integral part of the Company's

nner. The Company's entire receivable is from TSL for its
mal,

lure pa
is mini

n year end.

cashicheques on hand and short-term deposits with an original
f changes in value, Cash and cash equivalents include balances

of cash at bank, cash/cheques on hand and short-term
cash management,

Particuiars A at An gt
. 31-Mar-22 | 31.Mar-21
Balances with Banks in Current Accounts (e 4.45 8.50
Total PRl ME gy vy o 4.45 6.50
Reconciliation of liabilities from Financial Activities T S R S U 9
As at Cash flows Bl As at
Particulars Sl T Non-cash Transactions 31-Mar-22
Non-current Borrowing (including Current
Maturities of Non-current Borrowings) 571.21 28.00 (Drag] 5 S32.08
Current Borrowing = = % A \
Total 574.21 28.00 (erds)s - 532.06
. E Asat |Cash flows TS . As at
3] 1 Non-cash T t
e 31-Mar-20| Proceeds Repayment i i 31-Mar-21
«  |Non-current Borrowing (including Current .
Maturities of Non-current Borrowings) G583 = (87.70) ki it
Current Borrowing 27 .60 2.60 (30.20) - -
Total A 686.43 2,60 (117.90){ - 0.08 571.21
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13 Equity Share Capital

; F‘ As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Equity Share Capital 666.00 666.00

666.00 666.00
Authorised Share Capital
2000,000,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs, 10 each (as at March 31, 2021: 2,000.00 2,000.00
2000,000,000).
Issued,Subscribed and Paid-up
666,000,000 fully paid equity shares of Rs. 10 each (as at March 31, 2021: 666.00 666.00
666,000,000).
Total o , e 666.00 666.00
13.1  Reconciliation of Issued, Subscribed and fully Paid-up number of equity shares and amount
outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year,
Number of .
Particulars Shares in | Share Capital
'000s in crore
Balance as at April 1, 2020 6,66,000 666.00
Balance as at March 31, 2021 6,66,000 666.00
Balance as at March 31 , 2022 6,66,000 666.00

13.2  Terms /rights attached to equity shares

(a) The Company has only one class of equity share having a par share value of Rs.10 per share. Each
equity shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held. Further each equity shareholder is entitled for
dividend as and when the company declares and pays dividend after obtaining shareholders approval.

(b) In the event of liquidation of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive
remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in
proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

shares in the Company

13.3 Details of shareholders holding more than 5%

Particul As at As at
e 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21

The Tata:Power Company Ltd s

- Number of shares held in '000 4,92,840 4,92,840

- % holding of equity shares 74% 74%

Tata Steel Limited

- Number of shares held in '000 1,73,160 1,73,160

~ % halding of equity shares 26% 26%

13.4 Shareho!ding of Promoters
Shares held by promoters at the end of the year

% Change during the year

SINo Promoter name No. of shares % of total shares
i The Tata Power Company Limited 49,28 40.000 74%, NIL
(including shares held jointly) R
i |Tata Steel Limited 17,31,60,000 26% NIL

Note: The shares are held jointly by the following:
As at 31st March 2022

As at 31st March 2021

St No Promoter name Shares % of total shares Shares % of total shares

i The Tata Power Company Limited (TPCL 49,28,39,994 74.00 49,28,39,994 74,00

i |Tata Steef Limited 17,31,60,000 26.00 17,31,60,000 26.00

i |TPCL & Kailash Pati Mali 1 0.00 1 0.00

iv  |TPGL & Jeraz Eruch Mahernosh 1 0.00 1 0.00

v |TPCL & Hanoz Minoo Mistry i 0.00 1 0.00

Vi ITPCL & Anand Agarwal 1 0.00 1 0.00

vii  {TPCL & Kasturi Soundararajan 1 0.00 ! 0.00
viii  ITPCL & Jitendra Prasad 1 0.00 1

There were no change in the promoter's shareholding during both the years.
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14 Other Equity

i As at As at
p
Bt 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
General Reserve 68.88 68.88
Retained Earnings’ 232.79 211.92
Total 301.67 280.80
14.1 General Reserve
; As at As at
Farticuiars 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
Balance at the beginning of the Year 68.88 68.88
Balance at the end of the Year 68.88 68.88
14.2 Retained Earnings
’ As at As at
Particul
i . 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
Balance at the beginning of the year 211.92 99.64
Profit for the year ' 2l 111.64
Other comprehensive income arising from remeasurement of defined
benefit obligation net of income tax (0.33) 0.64
Total Comprehensive Income 120.77 112.28
Less: Appropriation of surplus
Payment of dividend on equity shares (99.90) -
Balance at the end of the year 232.79 211.92

14.3 Dividend

The shareholders of the Company in their rﬁeeting held on 23rd April, 2021 approved final dividend of

X1.50 per share aggregating  99.90 crore for the financial year 2020-21. The said divid

to the holders of fully paid equity shares on 30th June, 2021. ,

end was paid
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15  Non-current Borrowings
. As at As at

Pitisilon 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Secured - at amortised cost

Term Loans

from banks 532.06 571.21
Less: Current maturities of long term loans (Refer note 18) (66.93) (67.33)
Total non-current borrowings 465.13 503.88

15.1 Details of Security
(a) The term foan from HDFC Bank and Kotak Mahindra Bank as mentioned in sr. no.
charge on all movable assets (both tangible and intangible)
Company in the Debt service reserve account (DSRA)

1 & 2 helow are secured by first
and also secured by way of monies maintained by the
. Loan from Katak Mahindra Bank is also secured by alf current

assets (both current and future)
mentioned in sr. no. 3 helow are
Project, at Jajpur, Odisha, howe
in sr. no. 4 below are secured

of the Kalinganagar Project, at Jajpur, Qdisha. The term loan from HDFC Bank as
secured by first charge on all movable and immovable assets of DGPP, Kalinganagar
ver the security has not been registered. The term loan from Kotak Bank as mentioned

secured by first charge on current assets of

are in agreement with the books of accounts and there are no discrepancies

15.3 Details of original terms of repayment of term loans are stated below:

As at March 31,2022

by first charge on all tangible and intangible assets of KPO Unit LII, & Nl It is also

KPO Unit |, I & Il with a carve-out of INR 100 cr. for WC lenders & on ali
of the Borrower’s rights under all project documents including the PPA/talling Agreements for KPO Unit I, &,

15.2 The quarterly returns or statements of current assets filed by the company with banks or financial institutions

Sr. Amount Rate of Interest
No,, Particulars b e AN DT outstanding | | Terms of repayment ety
1 | HDFC Bank 303.58| Rs.10.17 Crore Per Quarter 7.45%
2 | Kotak Mahindra Bank 90.84 | Rs. 2.60 Crore Per Quarter 7.10%
3 | HDFC Bank _ 109.64{ Rs. 3.96 Crore Per Quarter 7.30%
} Rs. 0.875 Crore Per Quanter
4 | Kotak Mahindra Bank 28.00 w.e.f July 7, 2023 7.25%
Total Borrowing 532.06
As at March 31,2021
2t Particulars ) Amoun_t Terms of repayment Rate of Interest
No. outstanding per annum
1 | HDFC Bank 344.26| Rs.10.17 Crore Per Quarter 7.50%
2 | Kotak Mahindra Bank 101.26| Rs, 2.60 Crore Per Quarter 7.15%
3 1 HDEC Bank 125.69| Rs. 4.06 Crore Per Quarter 8.25%
Total Borrowing 571.21
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16  Provisions
Accounting Policy
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that the Company will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation,
The amount recagnised as a provision is the best eslimate of the cansideration required to settle the present obligation at the
end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is
measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (when the effect of the time value of meney is material).
When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.

: As at As at
Pattiayin 31-Mar-22_ | 31-Mar-21
Non-current

Compensated Absences 218 Al
Gratuity 6.04 5.24
Post-Employment Medical Benefils 0.44 0.43
Other Defined Benefit Plans 0.55 0.54
Other Employee Benefits 0.54 0.48
Total AT 9.70 8.80
Current
Compensated Absences 0.09 0:15
Gratuity 0.21 0.46
Other Defined Benefit Plans 0.05 0.08
Qther Employee Benefits 0.03 0.06
Total 0.38 0.73
17 Deferred Tax balances 1

2 As at As at

Pottictiin . 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
Deferred Tax Liabilities (net) 217.58 211.98
Total 217.58 211.98
17.1 Deferred Tax reconciliation
FY 2021-22
4 Recognised 5 .
Particuiars Opening in profit and Re?ogmsed Glasing
Balance in OCI Balance
loss .
Deferred Tax Liabilities in relation to it
Property, Plant & Equipment : Impact of difference between tax
depreciation and depreciation/amortisation for financial reporting 211.98 5.60 - 217.58
Total 211.98 5.60 - 217.58
FY 2020-21 s
7 Recognised . 4
) f Opening | . 3 Recognised Closing
Particulars Balancs |0 profit and in OCI Baildrine
loss
Deferred Tax Liabilities in relation to
Property, Plant & Equipment : Impact of difference between tax
depreciation and deprecialion/amortisation for financial reporting 202.58 9.40 - 211.98
Total 202,58 9.40 - 211,98
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18 Current Bon’owings___ L B
As at As at
Particulars
ot 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Unsecured-at amortised cost
Current Maturities of Long-term Loans (Refer note 15} ) 66.93 67.33
Total ShITRIC A O e 66.93 67.33
19 Trade Payables
As at As at
Particulars i, 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
(a) Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (MSME) (refer note 36) 1.66 0.37
(b) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 57 74 23.94
e e e e vl 29.37 24.31
Trade Payables Ageing schedule as at 315t March , 2022
e e 6ut~st;n_dlngforfollowlng“perlods from due date of payment ‘[
Particulars Less than 1 “’T—z Years 2-3 years More than 3 years | Total
e R A Year L]
(1) Undisputed Trade Payables
a) MSME 1.62 0.03 0.00* 0.01 1.66
© b) Others 20,09 1.66 1.20 4.87 27.71
(ii) Disputed Trade Payables
a) MSME - = - - -
TR e 1 O SRAS | . - : s :
" Amount is less than the rounding off norms followed by the Company.
Trade Payables Ageing schedule as at 3tst March , 2021
St IR D SEEl il L
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Partleulars Less than 1 1-2 Years 2-3 years Mare than 3 years Total
Year
(i} Undisputed Trade Payables
a) MSME 0.36 0.00* 0.01 0.00* 0.37
b) Others 16.82 2.03 43.90 1.19 23.94
(i) Disputed Trade Payables
a) MSME - - - s -
b) Others « - - ¢ Wiy -
" Amaunt is less than the rounding off norms followed by the Company,
20 _ Other Financial Liabilities ity apa Al SIS R
s As at As at
Pariailue  3-Mar22 | 31-Mar-21
Cumrent
(a) Payables lowards purchase of Froperty, Plant and Equipmaent
given on Finance Lease . 220.11 129.43
(b) Interest accrued but not due on Term Loans 3.40 3.77
(c} _Interest accrued and due on Loans fror Related Parly i s 0.62
S A A AT A e G o 223,51 133.82
"l21__Other Current Liabilities ;
< As at As at
Particular
it | 31Mar22 | 31-Mar.21
Stalutory Liabilities 7.80 D:3h
Other Liabilities 1.42 1.61
______Liability towards Corporate Social Respansibility PALI S e -
Total iy e 1073 6.96 )
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22.  Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Accounting Policy
Revenue Recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

Rendering of Services

Revenue from a contract to provide setvices is recognised at the contractual rates as defined in the contracts

entered into with the customers.
Leasing ~

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks

and rewards of ownership to the lessee.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
company's net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods so as.to
reflect a constant periodic rate of return on the company's net investment outstanding in respect of the leases.

Insurance and interest income
Insurance income is recognised on receipt basis,

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time

Partictlars Yearended | Year ended
] 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

(a) Revenue from Operation Management Services 111.48 9522

(b) Finance Lease Income 183.31 195.90

{c) Other Operating Revenue 5.51 6.78

Total 300.30 297.90

23.  Other Income

Particulars Year ended | Year ended
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21

3 (@) Liquidated Damages and others ‘ 0.09 1.76
(b) Interest income on Bank Deposits 0.65 0.31

(c) Gain on Investments classified as fair vaiue through profit or loss 273 3.24

Total 3.47 5.31
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24, Employee Benefits Expense

Accounting Policy

Defined contribution plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions,

Defined benefits plans

actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes to the asset celling (if applicabie) and the
(excluding net interest), is reflected immediately in the balance sheet with a charge or credi

, comprising

return on plan assets
t recognised in other

comprehensive income in the period in which they occur, Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive income is
reflected immediately in retained earnings and is not reclassified to profit or loss. Past service cost is recognised in the
Statement of profit or loss in the period of a plan amendment. Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate at
the beginning of the period to the net defined benefit liability or asset, Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

* service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on curtailments and

settlements);
* net interest expense or income; and
¢ remeasurement

The Company presents the first two components of defined benefit costs in profit or loss in the line item ‘Employee

benefits expense’,

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the balance sheet represents the actual deficit or surpius in the Company's
defined benefit plans, Any surplus resulting from this caleulation is limited to the present value of any economic benefits

available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans.

A liability for a termination benefit is recognised at the earlier of when the entity can no longer withdraw the offer of the

termination benefit and when the entity recognises any rel.ated restructuring costs.

Short-term and other long-term employee benefits

A liability is recognised for benefits aceruing to employees in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave in
the period the related service is rendered at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for

that service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits

expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.

Liabilities recognised in respect of other jong-term employee benefits are measured at the present value of the estimated
future cash outfiows expected to be fnade by the Company in respect of services provided by employees up to the

reporting date.

Year ended | Year ended
Particulars
31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
(a) Salary and Wages 15.51 15.01
(b) Contribution to provident funds 0.53 0.54
(c) Staff Welfare expenses 2.36 1.87
L (d) Gratuity It et RS 0.61 0.94
Total 19.01 18.36 |
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25,
;\W\WM S
i Y

ear ended
..,\\«_\
Interast expense;

Intergst on bank joans 42.04

Interest on loan from refated party i
Total
Lol et s

(a)  Consumption of stores and Spare parts

(b) Costof Services

(¢)  RawWater Consurmed

(d)  Repairs and Maintenance - Plant & Machinery
(&)  Insurance

Finance Costs

3 Year ended
Particulars

31-Mar-22 31-Mar.214

| Year ended

31-Mar.21

Payments to Auditors (Refer note no 26.1)
Fly Ash Disposal Expenses

Miscellaneous Expenses* I -
scoverab ces written off amounting to Rs, 916 crores (March 81,2021 Nir) i

Year ended Year ended

31-Mar.22 31-Mar-21
.\-\M\% 2y

Audit Fees 0.25 0.23
Tax audit fees ;. 0.04 0.04

Other Services (Certification fees) 0.01
Reimbursement of ex enses 3

e s

* Amount is lesser than the rounding off norms followed by the Company
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27 Income Taxes

Accounting Policy
Current tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacled at the
reporling date.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in olher
comprehensive income or in equity). Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporling date. Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from lhe initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assels is reviswed at each reporling dale and reduced to the exient that it is no longer probabie that sufficient taxable profit will
be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assels are re-assessed at
each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or logs (either in other comprehensive
income or in equity),

Year Year

Particulars ended ended
31-Mar-22| 31-Mar-21

(1) Income taxes recognised in Statement of profit and loss

Current tax 26.82 28.76
Deferred tax 5.60 9.40
Income-tax recognised in statement of profit or joss 32,42 38.16
{2) Income lax expense/ (credit) recognised in other comprehensive income (0.07) 0.14
Total income tax expense 32.35 38.30

27.1 The reconciliation between the provision of Income-tax of the Company and amounts computed by applying the Indian slatutory
Income-tax rate to profit before taxes is as follows: ¢

Year Year

Particulars ended | ended
31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21

Profit before tax 153.52 149.80
Applicable income tax rate 34.94% 34.94%
Income tax expense calculated at applicable rate 53.65 52.36
Effect of: i
impact of deductions claimed under section 80IA of Income Tax Act, 1961 and other non-deductible expenses (52.63) (59.58)
Reversal of temporary differences during tax holiday period 10.98 18.77
Differential tax impact between MAT and normal tax 21.82 28.14
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier periods - 0.62
Difference in tax rate considered for deferred tax calculations and domestic income tax rate in India (1.69) (3:57)
Others 0.29 1,43
Income tax expense recognised in statement of profit or loss il 32.42 38.16

The company continues to pay income tax under older tax regime and has not opted for lower tax rate pursuant to Taxation Law
(Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 ("the ordinance") considering the accumulated MAT credit, losses and other benefils under the Income
Tax Act, 1961. The company, based on its management approved projections, plans to opt for lower lax regime once these benefils
are utilised in future. The company has estimated that it wilt change to lower tax rate as per the ordinance from financial year 2032-33
onwards. Accordingly, deferred tax liabilities on temporary differences which are expected to reverse after financial year 2031-32 have
been recogonised at lower tay rate.

D s,
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28 Basic & Diluted Earnings per Share
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity holders of Company by
the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equity|
shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue,
share split, and reverse share split that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a
carresponding change in resources,
Far the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.
Partleulars Year ended | Year ended
_31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
(a) Profit after tax for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company
121.10 111.64
(b) Weighted average number of equity shares for the purposes of basic and diluted
earnings per share (Number of Shares) 666,000,000 | 666,000,000
(c) Basic & diluted earnings per share (in Rupees) 1.82 1.68
(d) _Nominal value per share (in Rupees) 10.00 10.00
29,1 Commitments
: As at As at
i 5 3-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
(a) Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed (net of capital advance Rs.
59.82 cr; 31.03.2021: Rs 28.28 cr) on capital account and not provided for 179.25 205.66
179.25 205.66
29.2 Contingent Liabilities
(a) - As at As at
P 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts:
Excise duty matters under dispute 2.05 2.05
Total 2.05 2.05

(b)

The Code on Social Security 2020 has been notified in the Official Gazette
date from which the changes are applicable is yet to be notified and the rules
change will be assessed and accounted in the périod in which said Code
thereunder are notified

on 29th September, 2020. The effective
are yet to be framed. Impact if any of the
becomes effective and the ruies framed

/.r»*;_'.’
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30. Employee benefits

30. 1 Defined contributlon plans

The Company operates defined contribution retirement benefit plans for ali qualifying employees, The employees of the Company are member of Employee|
Provident Fund, retirement benefit plan, operated by the Central Gavernment. The Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll costs to
the Employee Provident Fund which is the enty obligation of the Company with respect to the retirement benefit plan.

The total expenses recognized in Statement of Profit and Loss is Rs.0.53 cr. (31st March, 2021: Rs. 0.54 cr.) represents contribution paid/payable ta the
Employee Provident Fund.

30. 2 Defined benefit plans

‘The company does not have any funded plans.

Post-Employiment Medical Benefits

The Company provides certain post-employment health care benefits to superannuated employees. In terms of the plan, the retired employees can avail free
medical check-up and medicines at Company's facilities.

Pension (including Director pensian)
‘The Company operates a defined benefit pension plan for employees who have completed 15 years of continuous service, The plan pravides benefits to members

in the form of a pre-determined Wmpsum payment on retirement. Executive Director, on retirement, is entitled to penston payable for life including HRA|
benefit, The level of benefit is approved by the Board of Directors of the Company from time to time.

Ex-Gratia Death Benefit
The Company has a defined benefit plan granting ex-gratia in case of death during service. The benefit consists of & pre-determined lumpsum amount along with
a sum determined based on the {ast drawn basic salary per month and the length of service.

Retirement Gift
The Company has a defined benefit plan granting a pre-detarmined sum as retirement gift on superannuation of an employee,

Gratuity plan

The Company has a defined benafit gratuity plan. The gratuity plan is primarily governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. Employees who are in
continuous service for a period of five years are eligible for gratuity. The tevel of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at the
retirement, withdrawal, resignation, death of an emplayee.

These plans typically expose the Company to actuarial risk such as: Demographic risk, interest rate risk, and Salary inflation risk.

Demographic risk : This is the risk of variability of results due to unsystematic nature of decrements that include mortality, withdrawal, disability and
retirement. The effect of these decrements on the defined benefit obligation is not straight forward and depends upon the combination of salary increase,
discount rate and vesting criteria. t is important not to averstate withdrawals because In the financial analysis the retirement benefit of a short caréer
{emplayee typically costs less Per year as compared to a long service employee.

Interest rate risk : The defined benefit obligation calculated uses a discount rate based on government bonds. If bond yields fall, the defined benefit abligation
will tend ta increase.

Salary inflation risk ; Higher than expected increases in satary will increase the defined benefit obligation,

In respect of the defined benefit plans, the determination of the present value of defined benefit abligations was carried out at 31st March, 2021 by Willis

Towers Watson, the Actuaries,
v

The principal assumptions used for the purposes of the actuarial vatuations were as follows;

Particulars e o
31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
IDiscount rate 5 T Foi 6.80% 6.60%
Expected rate of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Expected rate of withdrawal
>if age of emplayee is between 21 to 44 years 6,00% 6.00%
>if age of employee is mare that 44 years 2.00% 2.00%
Expected rate of__):&g_cﬂggi _lnﬂation'_i Gald inflation s T R AT TR G BRI __8.00% 8.00%
Amounts recognised in statement of pro!it and loss in respect of these defined henefits plans are as foliows; I
Particulars Year ended | Vear ended |
5 j ¥t i i \ i 31-Mar-22 | 31-Mar-21
Current S;vrvicéncv&")s'h 2 : ] g 3 R . A /i 0.68 0.81
Past Service Cost and {gain)/loss from settiements 1o g
Met Interest cast on net defined benefit obligations ¥ 0.60 0.63
Immediate recognition of {gains)/losses - other tong term employee benefit plans 0.15 {0.03)
Components of defined benefit casts recognised in profit or loss 143l
Re-measurement on the net defined benefit Liability =
T T e U e R T N s e i i "TT Year ended | Vear ended
: SRR RAG | L 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Actuarial (Gains)/losses arising from defined benetit obligation expertence 0,78
Components of defined benefit costs recagnised in ather comprehensive income -0.78




Induystrial Energy Limited
Motes to the- financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022
Alt amaunts are in Rs crares unless otherwise stated

30. Emplayee benefits - Continued

The current service cost and the net interest expense for the

vear are included in the ‘Employee benefits expense” line item in the
The remeasurement of the fet defined tiability s include.

statement of profit and loss.
d in other comprehensive income.

The amount inctuded in the balance sheet arising from the entity’'s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plans is ag follows:

S o o | Yearended | Vear sndeg
a 'S

iy 31-Mar-22 | 31.Mar-21
R e SRR N e T =il

Present value of funded defined benefit obligation

10.08 9:53

Net liability arising from definqg benefit abligation

..... S Sned- i

10.08 |

Movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations are as follows:

iy I e U T Véar ended Year ended
i SR M-Mar-22 | 31.Mar-21
Opening:vdeﬁned benéfﬁiobiigafions 9,53 10,70
Current service Cost 0.68 0.31
Past Service Cost - .
Interest Cost 0.60 0.68
Actuarial (Gains) /losses arising from experience 0.54 {0.81)
Benefits paid directly by the Company

(0.77) {0.39)
Acquisitions credit/{cost) (0.50) {1.46)

Sl L IR L)
Closing defined benefit abligation

10.08 9.53
..M_.JM

Sensitivity Analysis

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuariat assumptions,

holding other assumplions constant, would have affected the
defined benefit obligation by the amaunts shown betow:

<=2 o LU ST
Particutars

Effect on defined benefit oblisation due fo change in discount rate by
0.50% Increased

0.50% Pecreased

Effect on defined benefit obli

0.50% Increased

0.50% Decreased

Effect on defined benetit oblisation due to change in Expected rate of withdrawal by

Year ended | Year anded |
3t-Mar-22 | 3q.mar2g
=20 RN T

10.53) {051

0.58 0.56
gation due to change in Expected rate of salary by

0.48

5% lncreased

Effect on defined benefit obligation due to change in Expected rate of Medica(®
Inflation by

0.50% Increased

Year ended
31-Mar-22

~Year éaded
31-Mar-21

- .“vn_h_‘....'-v—-—-_...___‘-——m—_.._...____.,‘w_,._«
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31. Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS) 24 “Related Party Disclosures” are as follows:

(a) Names of the related parties

Sr. Name of the related party C°“T‘t,'y of
No. origin
Joint Venture Partner
1 | The Tata Power Company Limited India
2 | Tata Steel Limited India
Assaciate of Joint Venture Partner
3 | Tata Projects Limited India
Subsidiary of Joint Venture Partner
4 | Tata Power Solar Systems Limited India
Key Management Personnel
5 | Mr. Jagmit Singh Sidhu- Chief Executive Officer (w.e.f 01.01.2021) India
6 | Mr. Vijayant Ranjan- Chief Executive Officer (up to 31.12.2020) India
7 | Mr. Aditya Kumar Mishra- Chief Financial Officer (upto 30.09.2021) India
8 | Mr. Anshuk De- Chief Financial Officer (w.e.f. 01.10.2021) India
g | Mr. Vijay V. Namjoshi- Director India
10 | Mr. Avheesh Gupta- Director India
11 | Mr. Ananda Kumar Prabhakaran- Director {w.e.f 18,12.2020) India
12 | Mr. Anand Agarwal- Director (up to 18.12.2020) -+ India
13 | Ms. Anjali Kulkarni- Director india
14 { Mr. Sanjib Nanda- Director india
15 | Mr. Vijayant Ranjan- Director {(w.e.f 01.01.2021) India
16 | Mr. Anil Kumar Jain= Director (up to 31.12.2020) India
(b) Related party transactions and outstanding balances
(i) Trading and other transactions
Details of transactions
The Tata Power
Nature of transaction Tats P°‘"ef S.olar Company - Ta?a :?,teel
Systems Limited Ll Limited
Revenue from Operation Management Services - - 111.48
) iz) (95.22)
Finance lease income - B 183.31
() ) (195.90)
Other Operating revenues ! - - " 5161
) () (6.58)
Cost of services (CSA Expenses) - 1227 -
) (12.10) )
Payment for Raw water purchased - 5.26 6.71
) (5.26) (571
Reimbursement of expenses by the Company - 1.47 -
) (1.43) )
Purchase of Fixed Assets 70.40 (2 -
(=) (4.67) (2.01)
Transfer of Capital Advances net of Retention money - 7 - -
) (14.75) )
Dividend paid - 7398 25.97

. )

Note: Previous year's figures are in brackets.
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(il) Loan to/from related party

Details of transactions

Notes to the financial statements for the Year ended March 31, 2022

31.1. Disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (IndAS) 24 “Related Party Disclosures” are as follows: - Continued

The Tata
Mature of transaction Power Tafa .Steel
Company Limited
Limited
Inter corporate deposit to related party - -
(120.00) (+)
Repayment of Inter corporate depaosit from related party . "
(120.00) (=)
Interest on Inter corporate deposit to related party - -
(0.09) )
Proceed of Inter corporate depasits from related party - -
(2.60) -
Repayment of Inter corporate depasits to related party - -
(2.60) (27.60)
Interest on Inler corporate deposits from related party - -
. - (2.78)
(i) Compensation of key management personnel
Key
Nature of transaction Management
personnel
Campensalion paid / payable 1,72
(1.54)
Sitting fees paid to Directors 0.0t
{0.02)

the composite
Note: Previous period's figures are in brackets.

(iii) Balances payabie to Related Parties are as foliows:

The above post-employment benefits excludes gratuily and compensated absences which cannat be seperately identified from

’ As at As at

Name of the related party Nature of Balances 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
The Tata Power Company Limited Trade Payables 2.46 2.02
The Tata Power Company Limited Payabte for Project Management Services Aval 1.62 2.01
The Tata Power Solar Systems Limited Payables for purchase of Fixed Assels 62.02 -
Tata Steel Limited Trade Payables 0.53 0.51
Tata Projects Itd Payables for purchase of Fixed Assets 1.01 1.93
Tata Steel Limited Payables for purchase of Fixed Assets 90.31 90.30
Tata Steel Limited Interest Accrued and due on Loan - 0.62
{iv) Balances Receivable From Related Parties are as follows:

As at As at
f\lf?w of the related party Nature of Balances 31.Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Tata Steel Ltd Trade Receivables 26.34 28.08
Tata Sieel Lid i Lease Income Accrued an Finance Lease 14.80 * 15.68

Receivable
Tata Steel Ltd Lease receivable 1,299.68 1,369.83
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32, Financial instruments
32.1 Capital Management
The Company's abjective for capital management is to maximisa shareholder value, safeguard business continuity and support the growth
of the Company. The Company determines the capital requirement based on annual operaling plans and long-term and other strategic

investment plans. The funding requirements are met through leans and operaling cash flows generated. The Company is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements,

32.2 Financial risk management

In ils ordinary operalions, the Company's activities expose it to the various lypes of risks, which are associated with the financial
inslruments and markets in which it operales. The Company has a risk management policy which covers the alher risks associated with
the financial assets and liabilittes such as interest rate sisks, credit risks and liquidity risk. The risk management policy is approved by the
board of directoss. The following is the summary of the main risks:

32.2.1 Market Risk
Market risk is the risk that relates to changes in market prices, such as interest rates (interest rale risk) and will affect the company's
income or value of it's holding of financial instruments. The objective of markel risk management is to manage and cantrol market risk
exposures within acceplable parameters, while aptimising the retum.

42.2,2 Interest rate risk management
Interest rate risk is the risk that relates to the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument which fluctuate because of changes in
markel interest rates, The capilal expandilure of the company is financed by loans, the shareholders' fund and inlemat proceeds. The
interest bearing loans of the Campany camprises of both fixed and floaling rale.

As at March 31,2022 As at March 31,2021
A 50 bps 50 hps
Particulars 4 oLl docrease in increase in hbg i
Increase in dacrease in

Bank Base Bank Base

Bank Base rates Bank Bagse rates

rates rates
Interest (cost) / saving on Indian Rupees loan {2.81) 2.81 (3.05) 3.05
{Loss) / Gain affect on profit before tax (2.81) 2.81 (3.05) 3.05

32.2,3 Credit risk management

The Company lakes on exposure to credit risk, which is the dsk thal counterparty will defaull on its contractual abligations resulting in
financial loss to the company. Financial assets that potentially expose the Company to credit risks are listed below:

As at As at
Particulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Finance leass receivables 1,299.68 1,368.83
Trade receivables 26,34 28.08
Other financlal assels 14.92 18.79
Total 1,340.94 1,413.70

Financa laase receivables, trade receivable and unbiled receivables

The only customer for the company is Tata Steel Limited, Joint venlure partner and revenue s based on the terms agreed in Power
Purchase Agreement or the other agreements. Also since the cuslomer is a group company and going tivough the past track of the
company, the Company's exposure to credit risk is minimal,

32.2,4 Price risk management

Prica risk is the rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctoate because of changes in net assets value (NAV) of the
financial instruments held.

» °
The Company manages the surplus funds majorly through invesiments in mutual fund schemes. The grice of investment In these mulual fund
schemes is reflected through Net Asset Value (NAV) declared by the Asset Management Company on daily basis as raflected by the movement in
the NAV of invested schemes. The Company is exposed to price risk on such investments,

The carvying amount of the Company’s inveslmenls deslgnated at fair value through profit or loss al the year end are 3s follows:

Particulars As at As at

31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
Investments in mutual fund 98.58 96.37

32.2.5 Liquidity risk mapagement X

The Company manages liquidity risk by cantinuously monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and malching the maturity profiles of|
financial assets and liabilities.

N . Carrying

Particular: =

articula As P Upto 1 year 1-5year 5+ years Totat Amount |
As at March 31,2022
Borrowings {(inctuding Current Maturities and Interest s R 2L
Accrued on Term Loan) 107.89 382.24 230.50 700.33 535.46
Trade Payables ¢ 29.37 - - 2937 29.37
Other financial liabilities 220,11 - - 22011 22011
As at March 31,2021
Borrowings {(including Current Maturities and Interest _ 5
Accrued on Term Loan) 112,60 384.95 277.80 775.35 574 98
Trade Payables 2431 - - 24.31 24.31
Other financial liabilities 130.05 - B 130,05 130.05

*The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual maturities of the financial llabilities ncluding interest that will be paid
on those liabilities upta the maturily of the instruments

The company has entered into 2 PPA { Tolling Agreement with Tata Steel Limited ( TSL) for supplying the entire electricity generaled from
the coallgas supplied by TSL, The company il be able to meet its short term Habilities from its own internal accruals.
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32, Financial Instruments

32.2.6. Financial Instruments.

The carrying value and fair value of financial insiruments by categories as of 31 March,2022 and 31st March, 2021 is

as follows:
a) Financial Assets and Liabilities

The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of 31 March, 2022 is as follows:

Fair Value Total
through Amortised : Total Fair
ERrftiaye Profit and Cost G Vaiue
Value
Loss
Assets :
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 4.45 445 445
Finance lease receivables - 1,299.68 1,299.68 1,299.68
Trade Receivables - 26.34 26.34 26.34
investments 98.58 - 98.58 98.58
Other Financial Assets - 36.90 36.90 36.80
Total 98.58 4,387.37 1,465.95 1,465.94
Liahilities
Trade Payables - 29.37 29.37 29.37
Borrowings - 598.99 598.99 598.99
Other Financial Liabilities - 223,51 223.51 223.51
Total - 851.87 ~ 851.87 851.87
The carrying value of financial instruments by categories as of 31 March, 2021 is as foliows:
Fair Vaiue Total
i through Amortised Total Fair
Panhaig Profit and Cost Cavmnog Value
Value
Loss
Assets !
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 6.50 6.50 6.50
Finance lease receivables “ 1.369.83 1,369.83 1,369.83
Trade Receivables - 28.08 28.08 28.08
investments 96.37 - 96.37 96.37
Other Financial Assels - 37.06 37.06 37.06
Total 96.37 1,441.47 1,537.84 1,537.84
Liabililies ¥ g
Trade Payables - 24.31 24.31 24.31
Borrowings - 971 .21 S| 571.21
Other Financial Liabilities - 133.82 133.82 133.82
Total - 729.34 729.34 729,34

«  |b) Fair Value hierarchy

.

The fair value hierarchy is based on inputs to valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value that are either
abservable or unobservable and consists of the following three levels:

« Level 1 — Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

« Level 2 — Inputs are other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

« Level 3 — Inputs are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). Fair values are determined in whole
or in part using a valuation model based on assumptions that are neither supported by prices from cbservable current
market transactians in the same instrument nar are they based on available market data.

As at 31-Mar-22 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assels

investment in Mutual Funds 898.58 - - 98.58
Total 98.58 - - 98.58
As at 31-Mar-21 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets

Investment in Mutual Funds 96.37 - - 96.37
Total 96.37 - “ 96.37
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33

Financial Ratios 1
Ratlos Humezator Danominator st March,:;;’.: st Fdarcll.gg;: Vadance) Reason of Vadances
Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabiitiss 0.74 1.45 -38%{lncrease In Current
Listilties due to
capital expenditura of
TG It & Domjuri Solar
Plant during CY
Debt-equity ratio Total Debt Total Equity 0.55 .60 9%| _
Dabl service coverage ratio (Profit afler tax + inferest {Interesl expense + 149 0.96 55%
expenseas) scheduled principal Rep a'yment o
repayment of long-term Prcipal amount. i
dabt during the penod) ) tnterest of borrawings
Return on equity ratio Net Profits alter taxes Average Shareholder's 013 0.13 1%
Equity =
Inventory turnover ratio {Average Inventories of fuel x| Cost af fuel consumad 176.06 143.93 22%| .
ber of da
Trade receivablas tumover ralio {Average trade receivable x |Sales 3307 34.48 4%
number of days)
Trade payables wnover ratio Average trade payable x Met credit purchases 113.73 102.83 11%]
number of days
Nei capital Wwmover ratio Ravenue Waorking capitat (3.52) 8.70 ~140%|Increase in  Current]
Liabilties  due  tof
capital expendilure of|
TG Il & Domjuri Salar
1 Plant duting CY
Net profit ratic Net Prafit after Tax , |Revenue 040 0.37 8%j .
Return on capital emploved Eaming befors interestand | Average Capital employad (R R] Q.12 4%
taxas i.0. Net Worth + Total Debt -
+ Deferred Tax Liability
Return on investment Interest income an Bank Average Investment + 0.04 0.03 1194 -
Deposits + Gain on Fixed deposit+ Loans Given
Invesiments classified as fair
vaiue through profit or loss
34 Signitlcant Events after the Reporting Period
Thare were no significant adjusling events that accurred subsequentto the reporting petiod.
35 Corporate Social Responsibility disclosure
Paticulars 31-Mar-22 31-Mar-21
A, Grass amount required to be spent By the Group dunng the year 3.05 3.03
B. Amount spent during the year:
i, Constiuction/acquisition of any asset . -
ii. On pucposes ather than (i) above 1.54 303
1.54 3.03
€. Details related to spent / unspent obligations:
1. Contribwiion to Charitable Trust 1.54 302
il. Unspent amount in refation to:
-angoing project 151 -
~Other than ongoing project . 4
Detalls of ongeing project and othey than ongaing project 3
In case of 8. 135(6) {Ongoing Projuct)
Opening Balanca Amount required to ba spent Amount spent during tha year Glosing Balance
With  {In Separate CSR during the year From Company's From Separate  |With in Separate
Comp [Unsgant Ale bank Afe CSR Campany CSR
an L1 : Unspent Afe Unspent Ale
- -~ 1.85 .24 -] 1.51° -

36

*The unspent amount in respect of 0ngoing pe

cojects has nat been transferad to a Special Account till the dale of approval of financial statements. Howaver, the period foe such
transfer i.e., Wirty days from the end of the financial yaar as permitted under sub section {6} of szctlon 135 of the Companies Acl, has not elapsed.

in case of 5. 115(5) (Other than i

project

Opening Amount deposited in Spacified Amount raquired | Amount spant | Closing
Balance Fund of Sch. Vil within 6 months to be spent during the year | Balanco
during the year
: - B T i -

pment Act, 2006 (MSMED)

* Amounl is less tan

.38 3

the rounding off normis fotlowed by the Campany.
i ficable, have been qiven in respect of MSMES to the extent iha:

could be identified on the bask

: As at March
P ulocs AsatMarch2022| 2021

The principal amount and the Inierest due thereon remaning unpald to any supplier as at the end of sach ac Bar ¥
i} Principat amount due to miceo and small enterprise 186 Q.37
i) Interest due on above a* 0
iii) The amount of Interest paid by the buyer in lams of sectian 16 of the MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amounts of the NI NI
payment made to the sugplier beyond the 3 ointed day during each accounting yosr

iv) The amount of intarast due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have hean paid but beyond tha i ML
appointed day during the year) but without adding the Interest specified under the MSMED Act, 2006

) The amaunt of interes! acarued and ramaining unpaid at the end of aach accountiag year NIL NIL
vi) The amouat of further intarest ramalning dus and payable aven in he 3 eding yaars, until such date when the Intarast 1A NIL P
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40

41

The Company has received two notices for hearing under “Jharkhand VAT Act 2005 from Government of
Jharkhand, Commercial Tax Department, Jamshedpur:

1. Praduction of Books of Accounts for re-assessment from the FY 2006-07 to FY 2011-12(till 14-7-11).

2. Show cause notice for Non Registration under Jharkhand Enlry Tax from the FY 2011-12 (from 18-7-11) to
FY 2017-18 (till 36-06-17).

The Caompany has replied regarding the show cause nclice for non-registration as well as production of books
of accounts for the matter of re-assessment. Pending receipt of any further clarification/ demand from the
department, the Company management believes that no liability would devolve on the Company as in the
event, any payments are required to be made pursuant to these reassessments, the same would be passed
an to the customer as per the signed agreements.

Segment Reporting

The Company is engaged in the business of operation and long term leasing of power piants to Tata Steel
Limited (Joint Venture Parlner). Consequently there are no separate reportable segments as per the
requirement of Ind AS 108 “ Operating Segments”.

Other Statutory Information

i.  The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending
against the Company for holding any Benami property.

ii.  The Company does not have any transactions with companies struck off.

ii. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yel to be registered with ROC beyond
the statutory period

iv. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

v. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or
on behalf of the company (Ultimale Beneficiaries) ot
b. provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vi. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or enlity(ies), including foreign entities
{(Funding Party) with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company!
shall:

a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in ather persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or|
on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
b. provide any guarantee, security ot the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

vii The Company does not have any such transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that
fhas been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income

Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act,
1961). ’ s

Previous year figures are regroupedirearranged, where necessary, to conform to the current year
presentation.

Approval of financial statement:
The Financial Statements were approved by the Board of Director's on April 14, 2022

As per our report of even date For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
* For S.R.BATLIBOI & CO LLP A7 i
ICALEirm registration number: 301003E/E300005 [ .., i
Chartdred Accountants LI Vijay V. bamjoshi Avieesh Gupta
. Director Director .
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Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer
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Company Secretary
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